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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Torthe Memboers of Devi Pharma Wellness Private Limited

Repaort on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying linancial statements ol Devi Pharma Wellness
Private  Limited, TC82/3963, Devi Pharma, Devi Bld, Chirakulam Rd,
Fhiruvananthapuram G.P.O Thiruvananthapuram -Kerala, 695001("the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss
{(Including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement.
ol Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the tinancial statements, including
material accounting policies and other explanatory ilormation (herematler reterred Lo
as the "hmanciad statements™)

e o opimion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
Les s, the ataresard hinancial statements pive the information crequired by the Companies
Act, 20013 (“Lthe Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in contormity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
Companics {Indian Acecounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS") and other
avrounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of atfairs of the Company as
al March 31, 2025, and loss, other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
Hows tor the yvear ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the linancial stalements in accordance with the Standards on’
Auditing (SAs) spealied under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
Lhose Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
thie Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company i
aceordanee with the Code ol Ethics issued by Lhe Instibele ol Charterod Accountants ol
Fodson (LCAT) together with the ethical requirements that ace relevant to our audit of the
lnarcm! statements ueder the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
love fullifled gur other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is suthicient and

-

appropriate o provide a basis lor our opinion. J




ey Audit Matters

key audit matrers are those matters that. in our protessional judement, were of most

significance in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period.

[hese matters were addressed in the context of our audit ol the Standalone Financial

Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon. and we do not provide a

separate opmion on these matters. Key audit matter is nol applicable to the compuny
a8 1L is an unlisted company.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Phe Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
itormation comprises the Director's report but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.
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Uur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

I connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsthility 15 to read the
otherinfarmation and, in doing so, consider whoether the other information s maLeriafly
mconsistent with the linancial statements, or oul knowledge oblained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are-
reguired to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial
Slaleiments

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 1 3H5)
ol the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true
and Etir view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in cquily and cash
Hows of the Company inacgordance with the accounting principles generally accepled in
I, icluding the Accounting Standards specilied under section 133 of the Acl, This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adeqguate decounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and application of
dppropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and muintenanee ol adequate internal inancial’
contrals, that were operating effectively for ensuring tho a curacy and completeness of
the dccounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation ol the financial
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
die to fraud or ervor.

I preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors ape
responsible lor assessing the Company's ability 10 continue a5 going concern, disclosing,
dsapplicable, matters related 1o going concern and using the going coficgen-basis ol
Actaunting uoless the Board of Directors either intends o liquidate the Lompany or to
cease operitions, or has no realistic alternative bul w do so. .




Thosg Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reportng process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Burobjectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financia) statements
45 a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and Lo
Issuean auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is o high level
ulassurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in decordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it eyjsts Misstatements can arjse from fraud
orerear and are considered material if, mdividually or in the dgpgregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the hasis of
these financial statements.

We give i "Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditors responsibilitics for Audit of
the Financial Statements,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Lo As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”),

issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section”

. 43 of the Act, we Bive in “"Annexure B” o statement an the malters speciliod in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

<o AS required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report thin;

(i) We have sought and obtained all the idormation and explanations which to the
« best ol ouP knowledge and belief were necessary tor the purposes of our audit,

AB) I vur upinion, proper books of accoun as required by law have been hept by (he
Conmpany so tar as it appears from our examination of those books.

() The Balance Sheet, the Statement of  Profit and Loss  (including  other
comprenensive income), the Statement ol Changes in lquity and the Statement o
Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the booiks of account

(U} I our opinion, the aloresaid financial statements comply with the Ind As specified
under Section 133 of the Act. '

{el On the basis of the written representations received rom the directors ds on
March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, nong of the _[f_ii:{?{:lm's
dare disquabilied as on March 31, 2025 from being appomnted as a directdf in terms
al section 164 (2) of the Act,




(0 Buring the vear the Company has not paid any managerial temuneration. With respect
o the other matters to he included in the Auditor™s Report in wecordance with the
requirements of section 197 ( 16) of the Act, us amended: ix not applicable o the
company,

(#) WiLl respect to the adequacy of the internal linsncial controls wilh reference (o
lancial statements of the Company and the Bperating effectiveness of such
controls, reler to pur separate Report in "Annexure ¢

(h] With respect to the other matters to be mctuded mothe Auditor's Report i
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
bur opimion and to the best of gur information arl darcording to the explanations
grven Lo us;

I The Company does not have any pending lingations which would impact its
fenancial position,

e The Company did not have any long-term contracty including derivative
contracts for which there were any material loresceable losses.

Ui There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
. Fducation and Protection Fund by the Company,

4. The Management has represented that, to the best ofits knowledge and belicf:
o tunds have been advanced or loaned or imvested (either from borrowed
lunds or share premium or any other sources or kind of lhunds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(res), mcluding toreign entities
["Intemnediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
Otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or mdirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner wiatsoever by or on behalf
ol the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide ANy guarantec, security
orthe ke on behalfl of the Ultimate Boneliciares.

b The Management has represented, that, to the best of ity knowledge and beliet,
no lunds have been received by the Company [rom any person(s) or-
entiy(ies), including  foreign  entities (Funding  Parties),  with  (he
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, as on the date of
Lhis audil report, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
 other ].1{~r'5{1r1.‘4 ar entities identificd in any manner whatsoever by or on
behall of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Henelicames”) pr wgwinlr ALy
pldrantee, security or the like on behalt of te Ultimate Ihrsu:fiti.triuf_
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Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, and according o the
information and explanations provided to us by the Management in this
regard nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii} of Rule 11(e) as provided under
(1) and (2) above, contain any material mis-statement.

The Company has neither doclared nor paid any dividend during the year,

Based on our examination which included test checks. the Company has used
software applications “Tally Prime Gold™ for revenue. billing and receivables,
purchuses and payables, inventory management and maintaining is books of
decounts during the yvear-ended March 31. 2025, which has a feature of' recording
the audit trail (edit log) facility. The same has heen enabled at applicalion as well
as database level, Further, audit trail was enabled in September 2024 and audir 1eail
leature has operated throughout the relevant period Tor all relevant transactions
recorded in the accounting software. Also. during the course of vur audit. we did
HOT come across any instance of audit trail leature betng tampered with in respect
ol sueh accounting software.

LHDIN: 2502816 1BMIGEW 2746
For Argee & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firmi Registration No.: 000217S
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Partner
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF DEVI PHARMA WELLNESS PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Aw part ot an audit in accordance with SAs, we excercise protessional judgment and
nuntam protessional skepticism throughout the audic We alsa:

¢ ldentity and assess the risks of material nusstatement of the financial statements,:

. whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sulficient and appropriate to provide

4 basis [or our opinion. The risk of not detecting o material misstatement restlting

trom fraud is higher than for one resulting from crror, as raud may involve

villusion, lurgery, intentional UIMHESIONY, misrepresentations, or the override o
mternal control,

© . Ubtainan understanding of internal control relevant to the auditin order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section
Laad(3) (i) ol the Act, we are also responsihle for expressing our epinion on whelthoer
the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference w financual
shitements in place and the operating offectiveness of sucl controls.

*  Lvaluate the appropriateness of accounting pohicies used and the reasonableness
(H accounting estimates and related disclosures nidoe by management,

» Lonchude on the appropriateness of management’s use ol the going concern hasis
ob accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether o materl
nncertamty exists related to events or conditions thi may cast significant doubt
o the Company's ability to continue as 2 somg voncern. I we conclude that a
niterial ”i'rll{:u'l‘hlilllt}* exists, we are required o draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
dre nadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the dudit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditer’s report. However, Tulure events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease Lo conlinue 48 a BOING concern.

o Bvaluawe the overall presentation,* structure and  conlent ol the hinancial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the lnancial statemoents
represent the underlying transactions and cvents in g manner thatachieves Lur

prrescolation

We conununicate with those charged with governance regarding, amaong othoer matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and sigrficant audil IlJuiE]g:H,}ﬂiﬂLlut_lem Ny
sigiticant dehiciencies m imternal control that we identify during ouraudit,

¥ a
.__.f X
: =
FAMTHITIL
' 0 LANE

\ T\ KocHeo



We also provide those charged with governance with a statement thal we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

LINN: 25028161 BMIGEW 2746

For Argee & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Iirm Registration Ng.; 0007178

CA Mathew Varghese FCA
Fartner
Membership No: 028161

i’l:_l:.‘t.‘: Koeh
e 26-05-2025




ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF DEVI PHARMA WELLNESS PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2025

| Refesred 1o in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirementy’
i the lndependent Auditors’ Report|

i

Lol ]

Al

(b)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantiative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, and relevant
detiils of right-ol-use assets.

The company has maintained proper records showing tull particulars o mntangible
a5y

Fhe Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management
ab reasonable intervals: whether any material discrepancies were noticod on such
verihcition and it so, whether the same have been properly dealt with i the books ol

Ao

Advording to the information and explanations given 1o us, there are no immaovable
properties, Accordingly, the requirements under pa ragraph 3(i)(c} ol the Ordor are not
applicable to the Company.

Aceording Lo the information and explanations piven (o us, the Company has not
cevalued s property, plant and Equipment (including Right of Use dssets) during the.
viar, Accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order are not
dpplicable to the Company.

According Lo thi inlormation and explanations given Lo us, no procecding has been
inthated or pending against the Company for holding henamy propecly under the
Bevam Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988, as amendod and rules made thereundoer
Avcordimgly, the provisions stated in paragraph 301 (¢) ol the Order are not applicable
Lo the Compriny,

() The Lompany has a system of physical verification ol imventary wherehy all items of

mvenlory are physwally verified over a period of tme al regular j!]it‘:'i-'.l!.‘j-llﬂllI'iirl}.; the
vear Thserepaneies, if any between physical inventory and book records arp adjusted
e the hooks as and when the verifications and corresponding reconciliations are
vartied out. In our opinion, the frequency ol verification, coverage and procedure of
el veritication is reasonable and appropriate. No diserepancies of 10% or more i

" the aggregate tor each class of inventories were noticed o such |r!w:,ijuﬂwaﬂ_fig;tl[un

According wothe indormation and explanations provided Lo us, the Company s not
hide aby vestments an, provided any guaraniee o security, or granted any i.mm:&r};ﬂm
I .

: ;"ﬂrlp-"ﬂh
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ddvances in the nature of loans, secured or uisecured, Lo companies, ficms, limited
hability partnership or any other parties. Hence, the requirements under paragraph
) ol the order are not applicable to the comjprny

v According 1o the information and explanations given W us, there are no loans,
ivestments, guarantees, and security in respect ol which provisions of sections 185 and
b6 of the Companies Act, 2013, are applicable and accordingly, the provisions stated
undér clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

V. According to the information and explanations piven o us, the Company has neither
decepted any deposits from the public nor any amounts which are deemed w be
deposits, within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013
ad e rules tramed there under, Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3(v)
of the Urder are not applicable to the Company. Also, there are no amounts tutstanding
Jds on March 31, 2025, which are in the nature ol deposits,

vi. The provisions of sub-Section (1) of Section 148 ol the Act are not apphicable to the
Company as the Central Government of India has not specilicd the maintenance of cost
fevards for any of the products of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in
piragraph 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Lompany.

vii.  According to the information and explanations piven to us, in respect ol statutory dues

(wl The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Provident Fund, Employees” State Insurance, Income Tax,
Gaods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory
dues applicable to it with the appropriote authorites.

thi There were po undisputed amounts payable i respect ol Provident
I-‘umfJ-.'rnp!uyt.-ﬁs' State Insurance, lncome Tax, Goods and Service Tax,
Customs Duty, Cess and other material slatutory dues in arcears as at
Mireh 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date Uiy
became payable,

viil. According Lo the information and explanations given to us, there are no transaclions
which ure not accounted in the books of account which have been surrendered or
disclosed as meome during the year in Tax Assossments ol the Company Alsy, there are
o previously unrecorded income which has been now recorded i the books of account.
Henee, the provision stated in paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
1.I||11|hl|':_'|,'.

I8 ) i o :
Lk Phe Gompany has taken loans or borrewings trom linanecial instiudtions, banks and.

overnment or has not issued any debentures Tl?t' connprany has not defaulted mn__
repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial institution, bank, government o)

Lo debenture holders.
PANTHIYIL
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() According to the information and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of our audit

(b

(it

J

)

procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any
trank or linancial institution or government or dany government authority,

L our opinion and according to the information explanation provided to us, no money

was rised by way of term loans during the year. Accordingly, the provision stated in
puragraph 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

.
According Lo the information and explanations given W us, and the procedures
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term hasis have heen used for long-
Lerim purposes by the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associote, ur jomnt venture. Hence
reporbing under the Clause 3(ix)(e) of the order s not apphicable to the Company,

The Company dees not have any subsidiary, associale, or joinl venture, Hence,
reporting under the Clause 3(ix)(f) of the order i< non applicable 1o the Company.

fronrapmmnion and aceording to the inlormation explanation given wo us, the Lompany
did nut caise any money by way ol initial public utter or turther pubilic offer [including
debt mstruments) during the year. llence, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(x}(a)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company,

According W the information and cxplandations given Lo us and based on our
tramination ol the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
relerential allotment or private placement of shares or fully, partly, or optionally
canvertible debentures during the year: Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph
)b} of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
L .

Based on our examination of the books and records of Uw Company, carred outl m
decordanee with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and dccording to
L fdormation and explanations piven Lo us, wo report that no material fraud by the
Latpany nor on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year in the

Coarse ol our dudit,

(b) Based on our examination of the hooks and records of 1he Company,.carried out in

LS

\

dtcordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and dccording to
the infurmation and explanations given Lo us, a report ynder Section 1143(12) of the
Act in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 ol Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 was not required o be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the
provisions stited under clause 3(x1)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Conpany

. & i p -
Weorepresented toows by the Management, there are no whistle-blower u:un]jgl;..y_';_z,l,qs‘ﬂ_
recerved by the Company tliJ.I'IIH.’,, the year, ~
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Xt The Company is nota Nidhi Company, Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph-
< SExi)a) to () of the Order are not applicable 1o the Company

¥ According o the information and explanations given Lo us and based on our

' exanination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are

in compliance with Sections 188 of the Act, where dapplicable and details of such

Linsactions have been disclosed in the financial stalemonts as required by applicahle

decountimg standards. Further, the Company s not required (o constitule an Audit
Cogumittee under Section 177 of the AcL.

L) Inour apinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit
systen commensurate with the size and nature of iis business.

() We have considered the reports ol the Internal Auditors, (or the pericd under audil,
psued tll the date of our audit report. .

W cording to the information and explanations given o us, in our opunon, during the
vear the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with direclors or
prersans connected with its directors and accordingly. the reporting on conmpliance

Hrine provisions of Seetion 192 of the Camn:anies Al St L dlise 3 sv) ol

e brder s not applicable to the Company

[} Tht Company is not required to he registered under Section 45 1A of the Reserve Bank
ol India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) and decordingly, the provisions stated in peragraph
Sxvi)lafot the Order are not applicable o the Company.

(b} The Company is not engaged moany Non-Bauking Financial or Housing Finance
aetvities duving the year and accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xvi)(b)
ulthe Order are notapplicable to the Company.

» +

{of The Company s not a Core investment Company (CIC) as delined in the regulations
made by Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph 3(xvi)(e) of the
Ovder are not applicable to the Company, '

() Aecariding to the information and explanations provided Lo us, the Group (as defined
in the Core Investment Companmes |Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not
e any Core Investment Company (as part of its group. Accordingly, the provisions
stadet under claose 3(xvi}(d) of the order are not apphicable to the Conipany,

il Based on the overall review of the financial stidements, The Company has not incurred
cast Tasses i the imancial year and in the imnieditely preceding financial year,

Avite There hos been no resignation of the statutory auditors during e year llence, the
prravisions stated an paragraph 3{xviii) of the Order are not applicable to e Conipany.

xix. Avcordimy Lo the mlormation and explanations given Lo us and on the basis ol L
Hndncial ratios (as disclosed in note 42 to the hinancial stateiments), ageing and expop

P/
w
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dates o reabzation of financial assets and paymoent of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board ot
Hirectors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come Lo our attention, which causes us lo
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit reporl that
Conpany 5 not capable of meeting its liabilitics existing at the date of balance sheet as
dnd when they lall due within a period ol one yvear from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that thisis not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
lurther stite that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within
il ;:uf-m:[ ol one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as
amd whon they lall due.

wio According o the information and explanations given to us and based on ourverification,
the provisions ol Section 135 of the Act are not applicable t the Company. Henee,
reparting under paragraph (xx}{a) to (h) of the Order is not applicable (o the Compiny.

XL According to the information and explanatioins given Lo us, U Company does not have
Ty Subsidiory, Associate or Joint Venture. Accordmgly, reporting under Clause 3(xxi)
ol the Order s not applicable.

LIMN 25028 161 BMIGEW2746
For Argoe & Co.
Chartdred Accountants
Firn Registration Na.; 0002175

» "
CA Mualhoew Varghese FCA
Har e

F'u"it*nl.i:-ur*jhip MNo: 028161
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ANNEXURE C 10 THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF DEVI PHARMA WELILNESS PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2025 i

[Relerred to in paragraph  2(e) under Report on Other Lepal and Regulatory
Beguurements’ in the Independent Auditors' Report of even date 1o the Members o
Western Healtheare Solutions Private Limited on the Financial Statements far the pear
ehidid March 37, 2025]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (1) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

W have audited the internal financial controls with reference to inancial statements uf
Western Healtheare Solutions Private Limited (“the Conmpany”) as of March 41, 2025
teruncuor wih our audit of the financial statements of the Company lor the vear endid

fun bt e

Upinion
I our apinion. the Company has, in all material respects, an adequitte internal financial
fontiols with reference to financial statements and such imternal linancial controls wilh

reletence o Nnancial statements were operating ctiectively as at March 31, 2025, basid
il e internal control with reference to financial statements eriteria established by U
Lompany considering the essential components ol inlernal control stated in the Guidanc
Note on Audit of®internal Finaneial Controls Over Finaneial Reporting issucd by 1he
lastitate of Chartered Accountants of India HCAL) (the "Guidanee Note"),

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and IRELEN T el
fanvial controls based on the internal contreol witl, reterence Lo hinancid stitements
coteribestabhshed by tie Company considering the essential components o internal
cutitral stated an the Guidance Note. These responsibilitics include the design,
inplementation and maintenance of ddequate internal financial controls that were
aperating etlectively for ensuring the orderly and ellicient conduct of itg Dusiness,
inctudmy adheroned 1o Company's policies, the sifeguarding ol its assets, 'ne prevention
dand detecuon ol trauds amd ereors, Lthe deciriey and compleleness ol the dvvowling

s cand the timely preparation of rehable lnaneial Memation, as requied under
i i ﬂ‘l o1
L0 4 e
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Dur pesponsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal linancial controls
with yelerence to linancial statements based on our audit, We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issucd by ICAI and
decied to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, 1o the extent applicable to an
aucit ol imternal financial controls, Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
wecomply with ethical requirements and plan and pectorm the audit to oblain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal Ginancial controls with reterence to financial
statvinents was established and maintained and it such controls uperated effectively m
Albmateril respects.

Vi audit ivolves performing procedures 1o obtain audil evidence ahoul the adequacy
ol the iternal financial controls with reference to financial statemoents and their
uperating ettectiveness, Our audit of internal findncial controls with reference Lo financial
statements meluded  obtaining an understanding ol internal financial controls with
Perende o hinancial statements, assessmg the risk that o matlerial weakness exists, and
Lesting and evaluating the design and aperating ellectiveness ot internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of e ancial statements, whether
due to travd or error,

Werheliove thil the audit evidence we have obtained is sulficient and appropriate Lo
prowide o basis for our audit opinion on the Cotmpany’s internal inancial controls witl
reterenee Lo lsancial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Financial Statements

A Lompiny's internal financial control with reference to financial stalements 15l process
trestined Lo provide reasonable assurance regarding the rebability of linancial reporting
diel the preparation of financial statements for oxternal purposes in o accordance with
peaveally aceepred accounting principles. A Company's internal tinancial control with
relereniee w linancial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the mamtenance of records that, in reasonable detail decaritely and tarly reflect the
Lsmsictiomy and dispositions of the assets of the Compuny; (2) provide reasonable
asstirance that fransactions are recorded as necessary Lo pernit preparation of financial
statemients i aceordance with generally accepted accounting prinaiples, and that receipls
and expenditares of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
ebmdiagement and divectors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regacding prevention or timely detection ol unauthorized deguisition, use, or disposition
ol the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the linancial statements

Hihicrent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With reference (o financial
stalements |
Because of the inherent mitations of internal financial controls wilh reference o)
hnameial statements, including the possibility of collusion or FHEPEO P b ia g e ment
vverride of controls, materal misstatements due to error o fraud gy geeur and not be
detected. Adso, projections ol any evaluation of U inteenal Gndcial cantrols witli
telereiee Lo el statements o future periods are subjpedt to the cisk that the internal
Hhancial control wath reference to financial statements may become inadeqguate |‘.Ii_"fi|l,_l.__ﬁf.‘-?-£‘:::;:_\
: 7 oy
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of vhanges i conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorale,

UDIN: 25028161 BMIGEW 2746
Far Argee & Co.

Chattered Accountants

Firm Registration No.; 0002175

CA Ma arghese FCA
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Memberstnp No: 028161
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Devi Pharma Wellness Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025
{Amaunt in Million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right to use asset
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Financial assets

Other financial assets
Defarred tax assets (net)
Mon Current tax assets [net)
Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Other current assets
Total current assets
Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital
Other equity

Total equity

Liabilities
Non-current llabilities
Financlal liabilities
Borrowings
Lease liabilities
Provisions
Total non-current liabllities

Current liabilitles
Financial liabilities
Barrawings
Lease liabilities
Trade payables
i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
ii} Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises
Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For Argee & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Na. 0002175

CA WMathiew Varghese, FCA

Partner

Membership No: 028161

Place: feedida

Date: 26-05-2025

PANTHIYIL
LANE
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As at

NotelNa, 31 March 2025
s(a) 801
5(8) 2197
6 696,80
7 007
8 119
9 0.07
10 055
728.66
11 169.75
12 247.03
13 56.94
14 435
477.97
1,206.62
15 .10
16 26.23
26.33
17 . 700.00
18 15.69
19 0.25
715.94
17 104.05
18 6.44
20
19.76
69.95
2 257.86
2 6.20
19 0.09
464,35
1,180.29
1,206.62
1-47

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Devi Pharma Wellness Pt Ltd
CIN: U46497KL2024PTCOBE322

i

MMJIMH Balagopal  Gopakumar Sukumaran Nalr

Director Director
DIN: 10681639
Place: Kerela
Date: 26-05-2025

Place: Kerela

Date; 26-05-2025

DIN: 11080193




Devi Pharma Wellness Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period from 14 July 2024 to 31 March 2025
{Amount in Million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Purchase of stock-in-trade

Changes In inventories of stock-in-trade
Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expense

Current tax

Deferred tax

Total income tax expense

Profit for the period

Total comprehensive Income for the perlod
Earnings per equity share (Nominal value of share: INR 10 (31 March 2024 ; INR 10))

Basic (INR)
Diluted (INR)

See accompanylng notes to the financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

As per our report of even date
For Argee & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No, 0002175

CA Mathew Varghese, FCA
Partner

Membership No: 028161
Place; k;z‘m

Date; 26-05-2025

Note No.

23
24

25
26
27
28
29
30

31
31

32

1-47

-

DIN: 10681639
Place: Kerela
Date: 26-05-2025

For the period ended
31 March 2025

1,124.37
013

1,124.50

1,040.86
(26.55)
23.57
42.29
3.09
6.13

1,089.39

35.11

8.95
(0.07)

6.88

26,23

26,23

2,622,61

2,622.61

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Devi Pharma Wellness Pvt Ltd
CIN: U46497KL2024PTCOBB322

Murﬂﬁhhmpal Gopakumar Sukumaran Nair

Director

DIN: 11080193
Place: Kerela
Date: 26-05-2025




Devi Pharma Wellness Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the period from 14 july 2024 to 31 March 2025

(Amount in Million, unless otherwise stated)

{A) Equity share capital (Refer Nate 15)

| Particulars Note No. Amount
Balance as at 14 July 2024 15 4
Add: Issued during the period 0.10
Balance as at 31 March 2025 0.10 |
(8B) Other equity {Refer Nate 16)
Reserve and surplus

Particulars

Balance as at 14 July 2024

Changes during the period

Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income for the period
Total comprehensive (ncome for the period
Balance as at 31 March 2025

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

As per our report of even date
For Argee & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reglistration No. 0002175

CA Mathew Varghese, FCA
Partner

Membership No: 028161 agE
Pla:e:ke_ﬁ.!‘;, EE &\‘,\\\ﬁ.
Date: 26-05-2025 ] LN

PANTE wyie
LANE
K(}CHI-‘IG

Retained earnings

26.23

26.23
26.23

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Devl Pharma Wellness Pyt Ltd
CIN: U46457KL2024PTCOBE322 W
¢

Murdlikrishna Balagopal Gopakumar Sukumaran Nair

Director Director

DIN: 10681639 DiN: 11080193
Place: Kerela Place: Kerela
Date: 26-05-2025 Date: 26-05-2025




Devl Pharma Wellness Private Limited

Statemient of cash flows for the perlod from 14 July 2024 to 31 March 2025

[Amount in Millian, unless otherwise stated)

Faor the period ended

i 31 March 2025
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 3511
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization expenses 09

Finance cost arm

Interest on unwinding of security deposits (0.05)

B0.45

Changes in werking capital
Increase in other financial assets (1.15)
Increase In other current assets (4.25)
Decrease in non-current assets -
Increase in inventories (26.55)
Increase in trade receivables (22.18)
Increase in trade payables 18.54)
Increase Provision for retirement benefits & Leave obligation 034
Decrease In other current liabiiities (36.:88)
I In other Habaili 59.87
Cash generated in operations 4111
Income tax pald (includes advance tax) 19,50}
Net eash flows g in inig activities (A) 31.60
Cash flow from Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (0.25)
Purchase i paid for isition of & (734.05)
Net cash flow used In Investing activities (B) (734.30)
Cash flow from Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital 010
Proceeds from barrawings B04.05
Principal payment of lease liabilities (2.22)
Finance costs paid (42.29)
Net cash flows generated in financing activities (C) 759.64
Net decrense in cash and cash equivalents (A+BsC) 56.94
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 56.94
Cash and cash equivalents comprise (Refer note 13)
Balances with banks

In current accounts 50,93
Cash on hand 201
Total cash and bank balances at end of the periad 56.94
Reconcilation of the movements of llabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

For the period ended

Particulars

31 March 2025

Opening balance

Cash cradit facitity

Loans from related parties

Interest accrued and due on borrowings
Total

MMovement

Cash flows-cash cradit facility

Cash flows-loans from related parties
Interest paid

Interest expenses

Closing Balance

Cash credit facility

Loans from related parties

Interest accrued and due on borrowings
Total

PANTHIYIL
LANE

KOCHI-10

804,05
[4.05)
a0.93

804,05
36,84
B640.90




Devl Pharma Wellness Private Limited
Statement of cash flows for the perlad from 14 July 2024 to 31 March 2025
(Amaount in Million, unless otherwise stated)

1. The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the “Indirect Method' as set out In the Indlan Accounting Standard (Ind AS} 7, Statement of Cash Flows
as in the C {indian & Ing Standards), Rules, 2015 (as amended),

2, Cash comprises cash on hand, Current Accounts and deposits with banks, Cash equivalents are short term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less
from the date ol deposits).

See ace ing notes to the fi 1 147

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

For Argee & Co
Chartered Accountants Devl Pharma Waellness Pvt Ltd
Firm Reglstration No. (002175 CIN: UdGASTKLZ02APTCOBEI22

\é\): ﬂ(f :
CA Mathew Varghese, FCA Murallkrishna Bal I P Suk Nalr
Partrer Director Director
Membership No: 028161 DiN: 10681639 DIN: 11080193
Place: kﬂr&lﬂ, Place: Mumbai Place: Kerela

Date; 26-05-2025 Date: 26-05-2025

Date: 26-05-2025
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LANE
KQCHI-10
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Devi Pharma Wellness Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period July 14 2024 - March 31 2025

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1. Company Information:
Devi Pharma Wellness Private Limited (the “Company”) is a private limited company incorporated in

India on June 25*, 2024 having its registered office at TC82/3963, Devi Pharma, Devi Bld., Chirakulam
Rd, Thiruvananthapuram G.P.O., Thiruvananthapuram, Thiruvananthapuram — 695001, Kerala .

The Company is a subsidiary of Entero Healthcare Solution Limited. The Holding company of Entero
Healthcare Limited is listed on National Stock Exchange (NSE) & Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). The
Company is in the business of distributions and marketing of pharmaceutical products, Surgical

Products and other allied services.

2. Basis of Preparation, Measurement

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment

Rules, 2016.
These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and on a going

concern basis

Basis of Measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for the
following material items which are measured on an alternative basis, required by relevant Ind AS, on

each reporting date:-
¢ Certain Financial assets are measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financial

instruments);
* Employee’s net Defined Benefit (assets/liability) as per actuarial valuation; and

» Liabilities for Share-based payments arrangements.

These financial statements comprise the Balance Sheet at 31 March 2025, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash
Flows for the period 14* July 2024 to 31* March 2025.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except where a newly
issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires

a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.
The financial statements are approved by the Board of Directors on 26 May , 2025,

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Comy any’s functio
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest




Devi Pharma Wellness Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period July 14 2024 - March 31 2025

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Functional and presentation Currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Use of Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make
estimates and judgements that affect the Company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the Balance Sheet date, reported amounts of Revenue and Expenses for the
year and disclosure of Contingent liabilities at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates and Judgements
used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon the Management’s evaluation of the
relevant facts and circumstances at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ
from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates, if any, are recognized prospectively in the year in which the
estimates are revised and in any future years affected.

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements, is included in the following notes:

* Note (5A): Determination of estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment,

* Note (5B): Determination of discount rate and lease term for the purpose of discounting of lease
payments.

* Note (9): recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profits against which
deductible temporary differences and carried forward tax losses can be utilized.

* Note (10): Income taxes: Significant judgements are involved in estimating budgeted profits for the
purpose of paying advance tax, determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected
to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions
* Note (33 (VII)): Measurement of Defined benefit Obligations: assumptions include salary escalation
rate, discount rate, expected rate of return on plan assets and mortality rates,

* Note(34): Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: Key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits.

* Note(38): Fair valuation of financial assets and liabilities. When the fair value of financial assets and
liabilities cannot be measured on quoted prices in active markets, the fair value is determined using
appropriate valuation techniques along with assistance from valuation experts.

* Note(39(A(i))): measurement of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) allowance for trade receivable and loans:
Key assumptions in determining the weighted average loss rate.

* Note (42): Impairment of goodwill: Key assumptions underlying recoverab),{ amounts such as
estimated long term growth rates, weighted average cost of img eﬂ/operatmg margins.
Cash flow projections take into account past experience égment'_ |best ejtlmate
about future developments. \ 7 )




Devi Pharma Wellness Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period July 14 2024 - March 31 2025
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Fair value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
accessible to the Company.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. The Company’s management determines the policies
and procedures for fair value measurement,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized into different levels within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
level of inputs used in the valuation techniques as set out below.

* level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

* Level 2 —inputs other than quoted prices included in level one and Valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable.

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is based on unobservable market data.

Current and non-current classification
All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

Assets
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
* itis expected to be realised in, or intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal
operating cycle, which is defined to be of twelve months.
e itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
* itis expected to be realised within 12 months after the balance sheet date; or
* itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a

liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified
as non-current.




Devi Pharma Wellness Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period July 14 2024 — March 31 2025

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
* itis expected to be realised in, or intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's’

normal operating cycle;

e itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
e itis due to be settled within 12 months after the balance sheet date; or
» the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at

least 12 months after the reporting date.
Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of

equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are
classified as non-current.

NOTE 3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Business Combination
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method under the provisions of Ind AS

103, Business Combinations. At the acquisition date, identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are measured at fair value. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent
liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition date fair values
irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. The
consideration transferred is measured at fair value at the acquisition date.

Where the consideration transferred exceeds the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed, the excess is recorded as goodwill. Alternatively, in case of a bargain
purchase wherein the consideration transferred is lower than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed, the Group after assessing fair value of all identified assets
and liabilities, record the difference as a gain in other comprehensive income and accumulate the

gain in equity as capital reserve.

In case of business combinations involving entities under common control, the above policy does not
apply. Business combinations involving entities under common control are accounted for using the
pooling of interests method. The net assets of the transferor entity or business are accounted at their
carrying amounts on the date of the acquisition subject to necessary adjustments required to
harmonise accounting policies. Any excess or shortfall of the consideration paid over the share
capital of transferor entity or business is recognised as capital reserve under equity.

3.2 Property, Plant and Equipment

The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is recogmzed as an asset if and only if, it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the it
cost item can be measured reliably.




Devi Pharma Wellness Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period July 14 2024 — March 31 2025

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises its purchase price, directly attributable cost of bringing
the asset to its working condition for the intended use and present value of estimated costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Any trade discounts,
rebates, input tax credit (IGST/ CGST and SGST) or any other tax credit available to the company are
deducted in arriving at the purchase price. If significant parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have significant costs and different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalized only when it is
probable that the future economic benefits associated with that expenditure will flow to the Company

and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Borrowing costs to the extent related/attributable to the acquisition/construction of the Property ,
Plant and Equipment that takes substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are
capitalized up to the date such asset is ready for use.

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when

the asset is derecognized.
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is calculated on the cost of items less there estimated
residual values, on straight-line method over their respective estimated useful lives, which is in line
with the estimated useful lives as specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

Particulars Useful Life as per prescribed in
Schedule Il of the Act (year)

Leasehold Improvement* Lease Period

Computer and peripherals 3-6

Furniture and fixtures 10

Office equipment 5

Vehicle 8

Plant and Machineries 15

Electrical Installations and Equipment 10

*Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of the lease or useful life whichever is lower.

Depreciation on addition to property plant and equipment is provided on pro -rata basis fr e-date of
acquisition. Depreciation on sale/deduction from property plan
date preceding the date of sale, deduction as the case m




Devi Pharma Wellness Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period July 14 2024 — March 31 2025

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in Statement of Profit and

Loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

3.3 Goodwill:

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
consideration transferred over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, in
accordance with Ind AS 103,

Goodwill is not amortized but it is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated

impairment losses.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (CGUs) for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those CGUs or group of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest level
at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

3.4 Other Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization.

The cost comprises purchase price, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts, rebates, input tax credit (IGST/ CGST and SGST) or
any other tax credit available to the company are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Borrowing costs to the extent related/attributable to the acquisition/construction of intangible asset
that takes substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized from the date it
meets capitalization criteria till such asset is ready for use.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful economic lives.

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If
the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization

period is changed prospectively.

profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

A summary of amortization period applied to the Company’s in



Devi Pharma Wellness Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period July 14 2024 — March 31 2025

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Useful life (years)

Computer software 3-5

3.5 Revenue Recognition

Revenue from Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers, generally on delivery
of goods at the agreed point of delivery. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, excluding discounts, incentives, price concessions, amounts collected on behalf
of third parties, or other similar items, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue s
recorded provided the recovery of consideration is probable and determinable. Revenue also excludes

taxes collected from customers.

Invoices are usually payable based on the credit terms agreed with customers which vary up to 90

days.

Other Income

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding
and the applicable interest rate. Interest Income is recognized on a basis of effective interest method
as set out in Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, and where no significant uncertainty as to
measurability or collectability exists.

Marketing Support

Marketing support income is recognized upon completion of promised services to customers. Revenue
is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts,
incentives, performance bonuses, price concessions, amounts collected on behalf of third parties, or
other similar items, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue is recorded
provided the recovery of consideration is probable and determinable.

3.6 Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax is recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

a) Current Income Tax:
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on taxable income or loss for the year

and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of the previous years. Cuf’gp \Assets
and liabilities represents the best estimates of the amounts expected to be recovered or paid.ta the

taxation authorities. The Tax Laws and Tax rates used to compute the amounts are those that are

e




Devi Pharma Wellness Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period July 14 2024 — March 31 2025

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized balances and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

b) Deferred Tax:
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet approach, on temporary differences

arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in financial
statements. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the year and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax

liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed when

probability of future taxable profit improve.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

3.7 Intangible Asset Under Development

The Company capitalizes intangible asset under development for a project in accordance with the
accounting policy. Initial capitalization of costs is based on management’s judgement that
technological and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product development project has
reached a defined milestone according to an established project management model. In determining
the amounts to be capitalized, management makes assumptions regarding the expected future cash
generation of the project, discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits.

3.8 Leases

The Company as a lessee
The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contraG{ﬁ‘ﬁu ' is, or

contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified: a’§set fo\irp riod
of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract convevs the rigﬁt ‘todoon }E) the
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identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
through the period of the lease and (jii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At commencement or on modification of the contract that contains a lease component, the Company
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative
standalone prices. However, for the leases of property the company has elected not to separate non
lease component and account for the lease and non lease components as a single lease component.

The Company recognizes right-of-use asset and lease liability representing its right to use the
underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset
measured at inception shall comprise the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and estimate an present value of costs to be incurred by
the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset and restoring the site on which it is

located.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation,
accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date
over the lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset whichever is earlier. The estimated useful lives
of right-of use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment.
Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognized in the statement of profit and

loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
the Company uses incremental borrowing rate, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the
incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as

a whole.

The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees,
exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option
and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an
option to terminate the lease. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. ’

The company recognizes the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to modification as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset and in the statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature
of modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is g
further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognizes any remaining

amount of the re-measurement in the statement of profit and loss.
For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Lease liability and ROU ass%j&e been_
elassified as financing caski, |
) o
/s ,

separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments h
flows.
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Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use asset and lease liability for leases of properties
that are having non-cancellable lease term of less than 12 months. The Company recognizes the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

3.9 Inventories

The inventory comprises traded goods which are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost of inventory of traded goods is arrived at based on actual cost of the “batch” which comprises
cost of purchase and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Provision is made for the cost of obsolescence and other anticipated losses, whenever considered
necessary.

3.10 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a non
financial asset or a Company of non financial assets is impaired. If any such indication exists, the
Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount and the amount of impairment loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use, are tested
for impairment annually at each balance sheet date, or earlier, if there is an indication that the asset

may be impaired.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and recoverable
amount. Losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss and presented in an allowance account.
When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the
relevant amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, then
the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through Statement of Profit and Loss.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its
value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of
impairment testing, assets are accompanied together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
group of of assets (the “Cash-Generating Unit” - CGU).

3.11 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
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A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best
estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that
probably requires an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or
where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. When there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or

disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are neither recorded nor disclosed in the financial statements.

3,12 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash on hand , cash at banks and short-term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value and bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the

balance sheet.

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash on hand and cash at
banks and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months.

3.13 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(A) Financial assets

(i) Recognition and Initial measurement

At initial recognition, financial asset is measured at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial
asset not “at fair value through profit or loss” are measured at transaction costs that a[g,__..giLer

attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets fr_r'ig'd‘%r-
value through profit or loss are expensed in statement of profit and loss. '

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are cl
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a) at amortized cost; or
b) at fair value through other comprehensive income; or
c) at fair value through profit or loss.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the related cash flows.

Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method (EIR).

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amounts are taken through Other Comprehensive Income (‘OCI’),
except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognized in statement of profit and loss, When the financial asset is
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCl is reclassified from equity to
statement of profit and loss and recognized in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these
financial assets is included in “Other income” using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or
FVOCI are measured at fair value through statement of profit and loss. Interest and dividend income
from these financial assets is included in “Other income”. Net gains and losses, including any interest
or dividend income are recognized in statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments: All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in OCl subsequent changes in
the fair value in other comprehensive income. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no reclassification of the amounts
from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may

transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value wnth aII,_’______-__:?f,_-\
recognized in the statement of profit and loss. '

(iii) Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, the Company 4
model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on fin
amortized cost and FVOCI.
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For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has
not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent years, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then
the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 months ECL.

Life time ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12 months ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results
from default events that are possible within 12 months after the year end.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all shortfalls), discounted
at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider all contractual
terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension etc.) over the expected life of the
financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot
be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial

instrument.

In general, it is presumed that credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition if the
payment is more than 90 days past due.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the vyear is recognized as
income/expense in the statement of profit and loss. In balance sheet ECL for financial assets measured
at amortized cost is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those
assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets
write off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying

amount,

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized only when
a) the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset is transferred or
b) retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a

contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the financial asset is transferred then in that case financial asset is derecognized only if
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset is transferred. Where the entity
has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial

asset is not derecognized.

(B) Financial liabilities

(l] Recognition and Initial measurement
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or loss or at amortized cost, as appropriate,
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

(ii) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on
liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(iii) Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at

amortized cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amortization process. EIR is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs

in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iv) Derecognition of Financial liability
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or

expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of

profit and loss as finance costs.

(C) Embedded Derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-
derivative host contract — with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary
in a way similar to a standalone derivative. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are
separated if the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related
to the economic characteristics and risks of the host and are measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives closely related to the host contracts are not separated.

Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that mgnlﬁr:ar}ti
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a recia 1 'n of a flnanqal assmﬁu}\
of the fair value through profit or loss. : =

eSS
3

(D) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
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there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

3.14 Employee Benefits

(a) Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled

wholly within 12 months after the end of the year in which the employees render the related service
are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the year and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current
employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(b) Post employment benefit plans

(i) Defined contribution plan

Provident Fund: Contribution towards provident fund is made to the regulatory authorities, where the
Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as
the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly
basis which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee's State Insurance Scheme: Contribution towards employees' state insurance scheme is
made to the regulatory authorities, where the Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are
classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations,
apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis which are charged to the statement of profit

and loss.
The Company has no further obligations under these plans beyond its monthly contributions.

(ii) Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity: The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (covering eligible employees in
accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment
to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount
based on the respective employee's salary. The Company's liability is actuarially determined (using the
Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/gains are recognized in-the.

2 § : 5 & z = \N a 1™
other comprehensive income in the year in which they arise. ,f;-‘f\@\/;’f:_*:,.gf:,@-\
g

F/4

Costs comprising service cost (including current and past service cost and gains anrf(Jd:c{smsjrm'n.-m\E)

curtailments and settlements) and net interest expense or income is recognized in profit or s@,\ i~
\Y O ~— ,"}
w

The obligation recognized in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus i
Company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculatj i
value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from t
contributions to the plans.
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Compensated Absences: Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or
encashed within 12 months from the end of the year are treated as short term employee benefits. The
obligation towards the same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences
as the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12
months from the end of the year end are treated as other long term employee benefits. The
Company's liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of
each year. Actuarial losses/gains are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which

they arise.

Leaves under define benefit plans can be encashed only on discontinuation of service by employee.

3.15 Foreign Currency Transactions

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction. Gains/Losses arising out of fluctuation in foreign exchange rate between the transaction
date and settlement date are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are restated at the year end at the exchange
rate prevailing at the year end and the exchange differences are recognized in the Statement of Profit

and Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

3.16 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

The weighted average numbers of equity shares are adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus
element in the rights issue, share split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without corresponding change in resources,

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all potential dilutive equity shares.

3.17 Share Based Payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to the employees via
incentive scheme.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair valug
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made
using an appropriate valuation model. That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase

in share options outstanding account in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or
service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognized for
equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date represents the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. Expense or credit recorded In the statement of profit and loss for
a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of

that period and is recognized in employee benefits expense.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
diluted earnings per share.

3.18 Share capital

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary equity shares are recognized as
deduction from equity.

3.19 Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of Company that engages in business activities from which it
earns revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with
any of the Company's other components and for which discrete financial information is available.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) of the Company. The Key Managerial Person of the
Company acts as the (CODM). The Company operates only in one business segment i.e. trading of
pharmaceutical and surgical products and hence, the Company has only one reportable segments as

per Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”.

4. RECENT INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IND AS) AND PRONOUNCEMENTS

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) vide notification no. G.S.R. 291 (E) dated 7* May, 2025 made amendments
in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

The notification explains the following:

« Exchangeable definition
» Estimating the spot exchange rate when a currency is not exchangeable into another currency,
» Disclosures requirements when an entity estimates a spot exchange rate because a currency is not

exchangeable into another currency
» Recognition of effect of initially applying the amendments

These amendments are applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1*l Ap’”F?,G;.{S
with specific transitional provisions outlined. 7S 2




NV
HAHLNYL

0B'563 aouejeq Suisop
- (Tt 330U s8524) [IMpood jo Juawned)
08969 (€ 910U Jaja1) popad ayl Buunp vonippy
2 3zuejeq Suluadp
SZ0Z YeW T
e sy SIE[NOIHEd
limpoog g
'SZ0T YaIBN TE 32 se $53.80ud Ui yiom jendes ou siasey) ,
00 = - * Lo = = LoD A [Eioy
100 100 = L00 SIEMUOS sEIndwon
e e 207 A SZOT Y2EW TE o vZ0Z Minr 41
mnnN_”u._ WIE mﬂongou_u._ WIE suonanpag pouiad i3 404 i uqm_t_.: «“ua._(t‘ pag 1sng suomppy i
= g Yanoay3 pasinkboy siEjnnsed
PoigIaN uoheziyowy ¥20]q ss0ug
s3essy sjquduel oo L
{612 8ET - BE'Z SEVT SEVLT 101
fiytd BET . BET SERT SE'PT (0% 310U J3424) @552 250 03 JyBry
513558 pased]
uogewquo)
= A
m.na~¢“u..m¢u5 133 nﬂoﬂu”ﬂuu.”i TE suoanpag pouad aya Jog en_wwn»““a ¥ mnnﬂu-n_uv..”_.e 1t suopanpag suonippY ssaurng _vnnwn uﬁ— 41 ”
s
yEnoiy pasnbay st
¥01q 19N uofiepasdag ¥20|q 55045
sjasse asn jo Sy (8ls
T0°8 L0 Lo 100 e BL'0 vS'E IE30L
590 wo fdis) = tan - £5°0 Assunpepy g jueld
08y SE0 SED 'S = ¥I°S - SIPYBA
L8010 610 BI'D 90T BI'O 880 s|essyduad pue saindwoy
30 60°0 600 £L0 F £L0 wawdinba 3o
80T 200 900 45 4 g 48 S SaUnNY pue asnjjng
= S}ISSE PIUMD
UORBUIGWOD
8 A
mwomhh_q___‘ 1€ m~n~u.”._“__z 1€ s npag pousd 3y 104 vﬂnunn m_“_. 149 mﬂanﬁﬁnﬂ—z 1€ suoganpag suopy ssauisng v.nu-ﬂn___n_“q vT
ySnouy pasnboy SIEOR
#2009 19N uoyeizazdag ¥0|q s50uD

wawdinba pue jueid ‘Apadosg (vis

(P1E1S 3s1MIBLI0 SSajUN ‘Lo || Ul JuUnoLwY)
STOZ Y2421 TE 03 ¥Z0Z Ajnf ¢ Woy pouiad au Joj SJUSWalEs |BRPURUL auy o ped Sujuoy sajoN
PRI MM SSAU||aM BULEYd 1A3Q



Davi Pharma Wellness Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Stataments for the pariod from 14 July 2024 ta 31 March 2025
{Amaunt in Million, unlesy otherwise stated)

B Other Mranclal assets

Asat
T 31 March 2025
Security Deposits (at amortised cost) L19
Total 1.19
9 Daferred tox assets [net)
As at
Rt 31 March 2015
Duferred tax asset on account of!
Hight of ute asset and lease labllity adjustmant .o
Gratuity & leave encashment 0.0
Unabsorbed depreciation and Unabsorbed loss i
Fair Value of deposits oLy
Tienirg betwesn ks aned charged in the books {0.25)
Expenses provided but sllowable in incame tax on payment basis 0.01
Net dolerrod tax assots 0.07
e
#.1 Note fa): Summary of deferred tax assets/[liabilities)-31 March 2025
Asat Charged)/ [Charged)/
Fartlculs As
S 13t April 2020 Cradited loPRL Credited to OC! S W
Fraperty, plant and equipment - 10.25) 10.25)
Expenses provided but sllowable in income tax on paymant teasls e oo 0.01
Right of use asset and lease lishility adjustment - ooa [
‘Gratuity & leave encashment . (X0 Q.09
Expected credit loss 001 oo
deprechition sed Uhikbaoresd loas 5 5 [
Fair Value of depasits . 017 - 013
Mot deferrod tax assets/(ability) 0.07 0.07
As
10 mMon current Tax assets (Net) _mhm_“
Advanee Income 1 9.50
Provishon for Income tax 18.95)
Total 0.55
_—
11 inventorles
Atlower of cost and net realizable value
Stock in trade (Refer note 26) 169.75
Total 169.75
12 Trade raceivable
Linsecined
“Comsidered good 24703
-Considerad doubtful {005}
20658
Larssa Expectod loss allowances 0.05
Total FLEN G
Further classified as:
Receivabie from related parties (Refer note 40) e
Recwivable from others 247.00
247.03
Trade recetvables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2025
Particulars/ Period Less Than & months B manths to 1 year 1-1 yenis -1 yeari Mare than ¥ years Total
(1) Undisputed trade receivable - cansidered good 124.85 T2 a4 652 . FIEE ]
i} “Whieh havee inerense 2 -
i erodit ik
(i) Undisputed trade recelvable - credit impaired . . ¥
W)L d trade bl -
daubtful : : ' : i
[v) Disputed trade receivable - considered good B -
(vl] Disputed trade receivable - considered doubthul - -
Lss: Allgwance for eepected credit loss . . s & » 05
Total 224,85 rae B 6.5 - a7.03
There are no unbilfed and not due recelvables
Asat

13 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:

31 March 2025

In gusrent accounts 5493
Cash on hand 201
Total 56.94

Agat
14 Other currant assets 31 March 2025
Advance to suppliers o057
Propaid expenses 003
Batance with government suthorities L7
Other recelvables 138
=

Total




Devi Pharma Wellness Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period from 14 July 2024 to 31 March 2025

{Amount in Million, unless otherwise stated)

15 Equity Share capital

Asat
Partleulars 31 March 2025
F—A N
a. Authorised Share Capital
10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 0.10
Total 0.10
——
b. Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:
10.000 Equity Shares of fls. 10 each fully paid up 0.10
Total 010
——
utstal As at
€. Reconciliation of equity shares o nding at the beginning and at the end of the period 31 March 2025
Particulars No of shares Amount
Outstanding ak the beglnning of the period . -
Add: Issued during the period 10,000 0.10
Qutstanding at the end of the period 10,000 0.10

d. Rights, pref, s and restricti ttached to shares

The Campany has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share. Each shareholder is entitled to one wote per share held. The Company declares and pays
dividends in lndian rupees. The dividend proposed by the board of directors Is subject 10 the approval af the sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of
liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitied to receive remaining assets of the Company, alter dis of all pref: . The di

will b in propartion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

¢. Detalls of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
As at
Name of the shareholder 31 March 2025
No of shares %
Entero Healthcare Solutions Limited Including shares held by naminee 10,000 100.00

As per recards of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations recelvee from shareholders regarding beneficial interest,
the abave shareholding represents both legal and beneficial awnerships of shares.

1. Shareholding of Promoters at. the end of the perlod

Az at 31 March 2025

Name of the sharehalder No. of Share % of Total Shares % Chm::ﬂ |:\:'ll'll the

Entero Healthcare Salutions Limited® 10,000 100%

“0Out of total 10,000 equity shares, Mr. Prabhat Agrawal helds 1 equity share Le 0,01% of total shares, as nominee of Entero Healthcare Solutions Private Limited,
E-No class of shares have been issued as bonus shares or for consideration olher than cash by the Company during the period.

h.Ne class of shares have been bought back by the Company during the period.

16 Other equity
o
s at
il 31 March 2025
L
Retained Earnings
Opening balance -
Add: Net Profit for the currant period 2623
Less: Re-measurement l0ss on post employment benefit obligation {net of tax) -
Closing balance 26,23
N, i

Retained Earnings
This reserve represents undistributed profit of the company a5 on the balance sheel date. Retained earnings includes resmeasurement Rainf(loss] on defined benefit

obligations, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss,




Devi Pharma Wellness Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period from 14 July 2024 to 31 March 2025

(Amount in Million, unless otherwise stated)

17 Borrowings

As at
Particulars 31 March 2025
Long term Short term
Other Loans & Advances(Unsecured)
Loans and advances from related parties* (Refer note 40} 700.00 104.05
700.00 104.05

Total

*The company has availed unsecured short term/ long term loan from Holding Company to be repayable on demand and over a period of 5 years, respectively.

These loans carry a interest rate of 9.00% p.a.

As at

31 March 2025

18 Lease liability

At amortised cost Long term Short term
Lease liability (Refer note 41) 15.69 6.44
Total 15.69 6.49
19 Pravisions
Pravision for employee benefits (Refer note 33)
Provision for gratuity 0.25 0.049
Total 0.25 0.09
20 Trade payables
As at

Particulars 31 March 2025
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 19.76
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small ente rprises* £9.95
Total 89.71
Trade payable ageing schedule
For the period 31 March 2025

Outstanding for Following years from the date of transaction

Portiitiats Payables not due  Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mo;z::n 3

MSME - 19.76 * ]
Other = £69.95 - -
Disputed Dues - MSME - - - .
Disputed Dues - Others - - -
Total - 89,71 - -




Devi Pharma Wellness Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period from 14 July 2024 to 31 March 2025

(Amount in Million, unless otherwise stated)

21

22

Disclosure relating to suppliers registered under MSMED Act based on the information available with the Company:

Particulars

Asat
31 March 2025

(a) Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year:

Principal 19.76
Intrest .
Total 19.76
(b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, along with the amount of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year,
(c) The amount of interest due and payable far the year of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during
the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act.
(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. 5
(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act.
*Refer note 40 for trade payables to related parties,
Other financial liabilities
Particulars As at

31 March 2025
Payable to employees 4,72
Purchase Consideration Payable 198.00
Interest accrued but not due on ICD 36.84
Other payable 18.30
Total 257.36
Other current liabilities

As at

Particulars

Statutory due payable
Total

31 March 2025

6.20

6.20
e ——————————




Devi Pharma Wellness Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financlal Statements for the period from 14 July 2024 to 31 March 2025

(Amount in Million, unless otherwise stated)

23 Revenue from operations
For the period ended

Raree 31 March 2025
Sale of goods 1,124.37
Total 1,124.37
Analysis of revenues by segments: s
Trading of pharmaceutical and surgical products. 1,124.37
Revenue based on geography
Domestic 1,124.37
Export -
Total 1,124.37
Revenue based on timing of recognition

1,124.37

Revenue recognition at a point in time
Revenue recognition at point over time
Total

1,124.37
S =2

24 Other income
Interest income

Interest on unwinding of security deposits 0.05
Miscellaneous income 0.08
Total 0.13

25 Purchase of stock-in-trade
Purchases of Stock-in-trade 1,040.86
Total 1,040.86
26 Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade
inventories at the beginning of the period )
-Stock in trade =
Inventories as at the date of acquisition of subsidiary / business 143.20
143.20
Less: Inventories at the end of the period
-Stock in trade { Refer Note no.11) 169,75
169.75
Net (increase)/decrease (26.55)
27 Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 20,60
Contribution to provident fund and ESI 2.28
Gratuity and compensated absences expenses (Refer note 33) 0.34
Staff Welfare expense 0.35
Total 23.57
28 Finance costs
(i} Interest on borrowings
(I) Interest on borrowings 40.93
(i) Other finance cost
Bank charges 0.04
Interest on lease liabilities 1.32
Total 42.29
29 Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation an property, plant and equipment (refer note 5 (A) 0.71
Amortization on Right to use asset (refer note 5 (B)) 2.38
3.09

Total
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Devi Pharma Wellness Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period from 14 July 2024 to 31 March 2025

{Amount in Million, unless otherwise stated)

30 Other expenses

Rent 0.05
Legal and professional fee 0.12
Travelling expenses 0.04
Power and fuel expense 2.46
Repairs and maintenance 0.80
Distribution cost 0.18
Printing and stationery 0.94
Communication expense 0.41
Office expenses 012 -
Auditor's remuneration (refer note below) 0.21
Membership and subscriptions expense 0.02
Security expenses 0.01
Insurance 0.07
Business support charges 0.41
Miscellaneous expenses 0.28
Total 6.12
Particulars
As auditor:
Statutory Audit fees 0.21
Total 0.21
*Note : The following is the break-up of Auditors remuneration (exclusive of taxes)

31 Income Tax
Particulars Far; :‘::E r:::: ; zr;ded
Current tax

Current tax on profits for the period 8.95
Total Current Tax 8.95
Deferred tax income (0.07)

Total tax expense 888 -
Reconciliation of effective tax rate:
Particulars
Profit before income tax expense ' 3511
Enacted income tax rate in India applicable to the Company 25.17% 8.84
Tax effect of:
Others 0.04
Total tax expense 8.88
Effective tax rate 25.30%

32 Earnings per share
Profit per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

during the period.

Diluted earning per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

For the period ended

Particulars
ic 31 March 2025
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company (A) 26.23
Weighted Average number of shares issued for Basic EPS (B) 10,000 .
Adjustment for calculation of Diluted EPS (C) -
Weighted Average number of shares issued for Diluted EPS (D= B4C) 10,000
Basic and Diluted EPS in Rs. 2,622.61
—
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Devi Pharma Wellness Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period from 14 July 2024 to 31 March 2025

(Amount in Million, unless otherwise stated)
33 Employee benefits

I. Defined contribution plans
The Company has classified the various benefits provided to employees as under:
a. Provident Fund
b. Employee State Insurance Fund
c. Labour welfare fund

The expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution plan -

For the period ended

Particulars
31 March 2025
Contribution to Provident Fund 1.80
Employers Contribution to Employee state insurance 0.48
0.00

Employers Contribution to Labour welfare fund

Il. Defined benefit plans
Gratuity
The Company has an unfunded Gratuity Scheme for its employees and gratuity liability has been provided based on the actuarial valuation
done at the year end. The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost were
measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
The actuarial valuation of the defined benefit obligation was carried out at the balance sheet date. The present value of the defined benefit
obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the details of the employee benefit obligation as at
balance sheet date:

For the period ended
31 March 2025

Gratuity
(Unfunded)

SrNo Defined benefit plans

| Expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss during the period:

Current service cost
Net interest cost / (income) on the net defined benefit liability / (asset) >

Total expenses

1] Expenses recognised in other comprehensive income
Amount recognized in OCI,Beginning of Period

Actuarial (gains) / losses due to financial assumption changes in defined benefit obligations
Actuarial (gains)/ losses due to experience on defined benefit obligations

Total remeasurements recognized in OCl

Amount recognized in OCI,End of Period

Il Movements in present value of defined benefit obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period
Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial (gains) / loss
Benefits paid
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the period 0.31

IV Net asset /(liability) recognised as at balance sheet date:
Present value of defined benefit obligation
Total
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Devi Pharma Wellness Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period from 14 July 2024 to 31 March 2025

(Amount in Million, unless otherwise stated)

V  Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounted basis):

1st Fallowing year 0.09
2nd Following year 0.00
3rd Following year 0.00
4th Following year 0.00
5th Following year 0.07
Sum of years 6 To 10 0.20
Sum of years 11 and above 0.11
VI Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is as below:
1 Increase / (decrease) on present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the period
(i) #1% increase in discount rate (0.02)
(ii) -1% decrease in discount rate 0.02
(iii} +1% increase in rate of salary increase 0.02
(0.02)

(iv) -1% decrease in rate of salary increase

2 Sensitivity analysis method
The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at

the end of the reporting year, while holding all other assumptions constant,
Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated

using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting year, which is the same method as applied in calculating the

projected benefit obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.

VIl Actuarial assumptions: As at
31 March 2025
i Expected Return on Plan Assets NA
2 Discount rate 6.66%
3 Expected rate of salary increase 8.00%
q Rate of Employee Turnover 20.00%
5 Mortality Rate During Employment IALM (2021-14) Ultimate
6 Retirement age 58 years
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period from 14 July 2024 to 31 March 2025

(Amount in Million, unless otherwise stated)

34

35

36

37

Contingent liabilities & commitments
(i) There are no contingent liabilities & commitments as on 31 March 2025

(ii) The Company will continue to assess the impact of further developments relating to retrospective application of Supreme Court judgement dated February
28, 2019 clarifying the definition of 'basic wages' under Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1952 and deal with it accordingly. In the
assessment of the management, the aforesaid matter is not likely to have a significant impact and accordingly, no provision has been made in these

Standalone Financial Statements.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of Company that engages in business activities from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues
and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company's other components and for which discrete financial information is available,

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") of the
Company. The Key Managerial Person of the Company acts as the (CODM). The Company operates only in one business segment i.e. trading of pharmaceutical
and surgical products and hence, the Company has only one reportable segments as per Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments”.

Capital Management
The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and maximize shareholder value. The

Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions, annual operating plans and long term and other
strategic investment plans, In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders or
issue new shares. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the period ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, The Company monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt' to 'equity’,
For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Equity
comprises all companents of equity including share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity share holders,

As at

Rarticir 31 March 2025
Borrowings
Long term borrowings 700,00
Short term borrowings 104.05
Less: cash and cash equivalents 56.94
Adjusted Net debt 860.99
Total Equity 26.33

32.70

Adjusted net debt to equity ratio

Events after reporting date
There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements.
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38 Falr value measurements
A. Accounting classification and fair values
The following table shows the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and

financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount (s a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Carrying Amount

Particulars St fvToc Amortized Yotal
Cost

Financial assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2025
Non-current financial assets
Other financial assets - - 119 119
Current financial assets
Trade receivables . - 247.03 247.03
Cash and cash equivalents - - 56.94 56.94
Total - . 305,16 305.16
Non-current financial llabilities
Lease Hability = S 15.69 15.69
Current financial liabllities
Borrowings - - 104,05 104.05
Trade payables - = 89.71 89.71
Lease lability - - G4 6.44
Other financial liabilities 257.86 257.86
Total - = 473,75 473.75

B. The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, deposits, other receivables, cash and cash equivalent including other current bank balances and other labilities
including deposits, creditors for capital expenditure, etc. are considered to be the same as their falr values, due to current and short term nature of such balances,

C. Fair Value Hierarchy
The fair value of financial instruments as referred to above have been classified into three categories depending on the Inputs used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy
gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for Identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable Inputs [Level 3

measurements).
Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity Instruments and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair
value of all equity Instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period,

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are abservable, the Instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the Instrument is included in level 3. This Is the case for unlisted equity securities
included in level 3.

PANTHIYIL
LANE
KOCHI-10




Devi Pharma Wellness Private Limited

Nates forming part of the Financial Statements for the period from 14 July 2024 to 31 March 2025
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39  Financial Risk Management

The campany has In place I8 ive risk manag policy in order to identify measure, monitor and mitigate various ricks pertaining to its business. Along with the risk management palicy, an
adequate internal control system, commensurate to the size and complexity of its business, is maintained to align with the philosophy of the company. Together they help in achieving the business goals
and objectives consistent with the company's strategies to prevent inconsistencies and gaps between its policies and practices. The Board of Directors/committtees reviews the adequacy and effectiveness
of the risk management policy and internal control system. The company's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies.

The company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

» Credit risk

» Liquidity risk and

* Market risk

{A) Credit Risk
Credit risk Is the risk of financial loss to the company If a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally fram the company’s trade and

other receivables. The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure,

i) Trade and ather receivables
Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers located in India. Credit risk has always been managed by the company through credit approvals,
establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. .

Summary of the compay's exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers is as follows:

Particulars As at
31 March 2025

Unsecured
-Considered good 247.03
-Considered doubtful (0.05)
Gross Trade Receivables 246.98
Less: Provision for expected credit loss 0.05

247.03

Net Trade Receivables

The Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss as per Ind AS 109. The Company computes the expected credit loss allowance as per simplified approach for trade receivables
based on avallable external and internal credit risk factors such as the ageing of its dues, market information about the customer and the Company's historical experience for customers, The Company has
used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The pravision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and is

based on the ageing of the receivable days and the rates as given in the provision matrix,

i) Cash and bank balances
The company held cash and cash equivalent and other bank balance of INR. 56.93 Millions at 31 March 2025. The same are held with bank and financial institution counterparties with good credit rating,

Also, company Invests its short term surplus funds in bank fixed depasit which carry no market risks for short duration, therefore does not expose the company to credit risk,

iii) others
Apart from trade recelvables loans and cash and bank balances , the company has no other financial assets which carries any significant credit risk.

(&) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk Is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The

company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liguidity to meet its llabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the company's reputation. M ent ars rolling forecasts of the company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of

expected cash flows.

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date, The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include contractual interest payments.

More than

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities

as at 31 March 2025 One year or less One to five years fvevears Tatal

Lease Liabilities 5.25 18.79 4,83 L7
Borrowings 104,05 - - 104.05%

Trade Payables 89.71 - - 89.71

Other financial llabilities 257.86 - - 257,86
Total 456.87 18.79 4.83 80,50

The outflows disclosed in above table represents the total contracted undisclosed cash flows and total interest payable on borrowings

(C) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices - will affect the company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the rey.;__rn,-Thg :pmpanv’s exposure to, and management af,

these risks is explained below., o * \
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Devi Pharma Wellness Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period from 14 July 2024 to 31 March 2025
[Amount in Million, unless otherwise stated)

(i) Forelgn currency risk

Forelgn currency risk Is the risk that the value of a financial Instrument will fluctuate due to changes in forelgn exchange rates. The company caters mainly to the Indian Market . Most of the transactions
are denomi 1in the company's functional currency Le, Rupees. Hence the company Is not materially exposed to foreign currency risk,

() Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cashflows of a financial nstrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

: As at
rticulars
" 31 March 2025
Varlable rate borrowings =
Fixed rate borrowings 104.05
Sensitivity:
A change of 100 basis paints in interest rates would have following Impact on profit after tax and equity -
Particulars As at
31 March 2025

Interest rates — increase by 100 basis points *
Interest rates — decrease by 100 basis points *
* Holding all other variables constant
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40 Related Party Disclosures
A. Names of related parties and nature of relationship:

Name of the related party

Description of relationship
Holding Company Entero Healthcare Solutions Limited
Fellow Subsidiary Atreja Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

Avenir Lifecare Pharma Private Limited

Avenues Pharma Distributors Private Limited
Barros Enterprises Private Limited

Calcutta Medisolutions Private Limited
Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Chethana Pharma Distributors Private Limited
Chethana Pharma Private Limited

Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Chirag Medicare Solutions Private Limited

City Pharma Distributors Private Limited

CPD Pharma Private Limited

Curever Pharma Private Limited

Dhanvanthari Super Speciality Private Limited
Entero RS Enterprises Private Limited
G.S.Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited
Galaxystar Pharma Distributors Private Limited
Getwell Medicare Solution Private Limited
Gourav Medical Agencies Private Limited

Jaggl Enterprises Private Limited

Millennium Medisolutions Private Limited

New RRPD Private Limited

New Siva Agencies Private Limited

Novacare Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Peerless Biotech Private Limited

RS M Pharma Private Limited

Rada Medisolutions Private Limited

S.S. Pharma Traders Private Limited

Sai pharma distributors Private Limited
Saurashtra Medisaolutions Private Limited

Sesha Balajee Medisolutions Private Limited
Sree Venkateshwara Medisolutions Private Limited
Sri Parshva Pharma Distributors Private Limited
Sri Rama Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited
Srinivasa Lifecare Private Limited

Sundarlal Pharma Distributors Private Limited
Suprabhat Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
SVMED Solutions Private Limited

SVS Lifesciences Private Limited

Swami Medisolutions Private Limited

Vasavi Medicare Solutions Private Limited
Western Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Ujjain Maheshwari Pharma Distributors Private Limited
Quromed Lifesciences Private Limited

Rimedio Pharma Private Limited

ZENNX SOFTWARE SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED




Devi Pharma Wellness Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period from 14 July 2024 to 31 March 2025
(Amount in Million, unless otherwise stated)

any Individual

Entities under common control of

Millennium City Developers Private Limited
Millennium Medicare Private Limited
Mediste Pharmaceutical Private Limited

Medlix Hospitals And Healthcare Lip

H § Pathology Private Limited

Lifewell Diagnostics Private Limited

Suraksha Diagnostic Private Limited

Blue Sapphire Healthcares Private Limited
RK Business Consultancy

Directors

Shitiz Sukhija
Prem Sethi
Alikesh Awasthi

their relative:

Key Management Personnel and

Mr, Alikesh Awasthi
Mr. Prem Sethi

B. Details of related party transactions:

For the period ended

| Sale of stock in trade

|GetweJl Medicare Sol Pvt

Nature of Ti i Name of the related pa
ature ransaction e related party 8% WAnrch SeioE
Purchase of stock in trade Getwell Medicare Solution Private Limited 0.53
Peerless Biotech Private Limited 0.46
015 |

| Cross charge

[Entero Healthcare Solutions Limited

28.47 |

Nature of Transaction

Name of the related party

Far the period ended

31 March 2025

| Interest expense [Enterc Healthcare Solutions Limited 401,93 ]
I Loans taken IEnmm Healthcare Solutions Limited §34.05 [
[ Loans repaid [Entero Healthcare Solutions Limited 30.00 |
| Rent expense |Kanakku Sivasankarannair Balagopal 2.00 ]
C. Details of balances outstanding for related party transactions:
Nature of Transaction Name of the related party et
31 March 2025

| Loans taken |Entero Healthcare Solutions Limited 804.05 |
| Interest payable |Entero Healthcare Solutions Limited 36.84 ]
| Trade receivables IGetwelI Medicare Solution Private Limited 0.01 I

Trade payables Getwell Medicare Solution Private Limited 0.13

Peerless Biotech Private Limited 0.07
| Cross charge IEnteru Healthcare Solutions Limited 30.69 |

| Other Payable

[Devi Pharma(Partnership Firm)

16,89 |




Devi Pharma Wellness Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period from 14 July 2024 to 31 March 2025
(Amount in Million, unless otherwise stated)

D. Key management personnel compensation:

Far the period ended
Pa
rticulars 31 March 2025

Director Remuneration:
Salaries and Allowances

Key managerial personnel who are under the employment of the Company are entitled to post employment benefits recognised as per Ind AS 19 - ‘Employee
Benefits’ in the financial statements. As these employee benefits are amounts provided on the basis of actuarial valuation, the same is not included above.
Gratuity has been computed for the Company as a whole and hence excluded,

E. The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are
unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the
market in which the related party operates.
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41

a

18)

o)

Disclosure related to Leases
Company as Lessee

Change in carrying value of right of use assets at the end of the reporting period

As at
Particulars 31 March 2025
Balanca at the beginning of the period -
Additions 24.35
Adjustment -
Depreciation charge for the year [2.38)
Balance at the end of the perlod 21.97

Change in carrying value of lease liabilities at the end of the reparting period

Balance at the beginning of the period
Additions

Payment of lease liabilities

Finance cost during the perlod
Balance at the end of the period

Maturity analysis of lease llabilities

Less than one year

One to five years

Mare than five years

Total undiscounted lease labilities at reporting period

Lease liabllities included In the affi position at the periad ended

—
23.64
{2.84)
PE— X
22,12
525
18.79
483
28.87
22.12
recognised in of profit or loss
Interest on lease labilities 132
Expenses relating to short-term leases o5
Amatisation of Right to Use Assets 238

Amaunts recognised In the statement of cash flows

Tatal Cash outflow for leases 2.84
s

Impairment testing of Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually on 315t March every pwriod. C ¥ op in single seg f cGu.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is based on higher of falr value less casts to sell and value In use. Falr value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participant at measurement date. Value In use is present value of future cash flow expected to be derived from
an assets (CGU). The value in use is estimated using discounted cash Hows over a period of 5 years and Cash flows beyond § periods is estimated by capitalising the future
maintainable cash flows by an appropriate capitalisation rate and then discounted using appropriate discount rate. This fair value measurement was categorised as 3 Lovel 3
fair value based an inputs in the valuation technique used.

Operating margins and growth rates for the five year cash flow projections have been estimated based on past exp and after idering the financial
budgets/forecasts provided by the Other key ass, lons used in the estimation of the recoverable amount are set out below. The values assigned to the key
tions represent mar s assessment of future trends in the relevant industry and have been based on historical data from both external and internal sources.

As at
Particulars 31 March 2025
Discount rate 13.27%
Terminal value growth rate 5.00%
Revenue growth rate 10.00%

With regard to assessment of recoverable amount, no reasonalably passible change in any of the above key assumptions would cost the carrying amount of the CGU's to
excend their recoverable amount.

The Company has also performed sensitivity analysis calculations on the projections used and discount rate applied. Company has concluded that, given the significant
headraom that exists, and the results of the sensitivity analysis performed, there is no significant risk that reasonable changes In any key assumptions would cause the
carrying value of goodwill to exceed its value In use,
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Business Combinations

Devi Pharma Wellness Private Limited

On 14 July 2024, the Company completed the acquisition of M/s Devi Pharma, a partnership firm under slump sale transaction. The deal
envisaged the acquisition of the business for a total cash consideration of Rs, 700.05 million. The transaction is accounted for as per
acquisition method of business combination under Ind AS 103 - "Business Combination”

The acquisition Is in line with the Company’s strategy to expand its business in the state of Kerala.

Purchase consideration transferred:

Particulars Amount
Lump sum consideration (including contingent consideration) 700,05
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

Property, Plant and Equipment B6.02
Inventories 107.63
Trade Receivables 173,10
Other Current Assets -
Other Current Liabllities (31.77)
Trade payable (82.99)
Cash and cash equivalent =
Total identiflable net assets 171.98
Amount recognized as Goodwill:

Fair value of consideration transferred 700.05
Less: Fair value of the net assets acquired 171,98
Goodwill 528.07

Acquired Recelvables:
As on the date of acquisition, gross contractual amount of the acquired Trade and other Receivables was Rs. 173,10 million against which
no provision had been considered since fair value of the acquired receivables were equal to ca rrying value as on the date of acquisition.

Acquisition of M/s Shree Enterprises

On 5 December 2024, Devi Pharma Wellness Private Limited ("Devi Pharma"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Holding Company
completed the acquisition of/s Shree Enterprises, a partnership firm under slump sale transaction. The deal envisaged the acquisition of
the business for a total cash consideration of Rs. 551.78 million including deferred consideration of Rs. 232.00 million, The transaction is
accounted as per acquisition method of business combination under Ind AS 103,

The acquisition is in line with the Company's strategy to expand its business in the state of Kerala.

Purchase consideration transferred:

Particulars Amount
Lump sum consideration (including contingent consideration) 232.00
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed:
Particulars Amount
Property, Plant and Equipment 2.52
Inventories 35.57
Trade receivables 51.74
(11.31)

Other Current Liabilities

Trade payables {15.25!

Total identifiable net assets 63.27

Amount recognized as Goodwill:

Particulars Amount

Fair value of consideration transferred 232.00

Less: Fair value of the net assets acquired 63.27
168.73

Goodwill

Acquired Receivables:
As on the date of acquisition, gross contractual amount of the acquired Trade and other Receivables was Rs. 51.74 million apgainst which no

provision had been considered since fair value of the acquired receivables were equal to carrying value as on the date of acquisition,
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44 Stat of unhedged foreign y EXp
The Company has no foreign currency exposure as at 31 March 2025,

45 Other Statutory Informatian:
{1} Detalls of benami property held
The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been |nitiated or pending against the Company far holding any Benami property,
(H) Relationships with struck off companies
The Company da not have any iransactions with companies struck off.
(i) Registration of charges or satlsfaction with of Comp
The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,

{Iv) Detalls of erypto currency or virtual currency
The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financlal year,

(v} Utilisation of borrowings availed from banks and financial Institutions
The Company have not adh ar ded loan or funds to any other p {s}or ylles). including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall;

{a} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the company (Ulimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
The Company have not received any fund from any persanis) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise] that the Company shall;
{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficlaries) or
[b) pravide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behall of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
(vl) Undisclosed Incame
The Company does nat have any undisclosed Income which is not recorded in the books of agcount that has bean surrendered or disclosed as income during the year (previous year) in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant prowisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

{vill] The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employmant has
released draft rules for theCode on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which ore underactive consideration by the Ministry. The Group will assess the impact
and ts evaluation once the subject rules are notified and will give apprapriate impact in Its financial statements In the perlod in which, the Code becomes effective and therelated rules to determine the financial

Impact are published,
{wlli) Wilful defaulter
The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or by any government authorities.

(ix) Compliance with number of layers of companies
The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies [Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

(xc with approved scheme(s) of gements
The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year,

[x1) Title deeds of immovable properties nat held In name of the company

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (ather than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease are duly in favour of the lessee) are
held In the name of the Company during the current and previous year.

{xii) Valuation of PPE, Intangible assets and Investment property
Tha has not lued its property, plant and equl {Including Right of use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year,

(xill) Audit Trall

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has prescribed a new requirement for companies under the provisa to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts] Rules, 2014 inserted by the C (Accounts)

Rules 2021 requiring panies, which uses g software for maintaining Its books of accounts, shall use only such accounting software which has o feature of recording audit trail of each and pvery
transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the books of accounts along with the date when sueh changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled.

The Campany has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account during the financial vear, which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) Facility, and the same has been enabled and operated
througheut the period for all relevant tr recorded in the it . Further there were no instances of audit trail feature being tampered with In respect of this software.

[will) Backup of books of accounts
The company uses software application to maintain its books of accounts and other books and papers In electronie mode {"Electronic records™). Durlng the year, the Company has maintaned backups of these

electronic records on server physically located in India on dally basis, except for an Sundays, as req) by Cs ies [Accounts) Rules, 2014 |as amended).

a6 The were d for Issue by the company’s board of directors an May 26,2025,

A1 Previaus year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified, where necessary, to conform to this year's classification,
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